

# Clearance of existing boundary wall, fencing, and hedging. Construction of a new boundary wall Installation of a new footpath and kerbing along Cloverhill Rd. approx. 330m. Works are to be completed in 6 phases completing approx. 50m per phase.

Project Title	Cloverhill Lodge
Site Location	Cloverhill Rd, Dublin 22.
Client	Pathway Homes Ltd.
Contractor	McDermott and Trearty Ltd.
Date of Issue	18/08/2022
Revision	001

# **Traffic Management Plan**

**TMP 001** 



# **Table of Contents**

1.	Introduction	3
	1.1 Traffic Management Principles	3
	1.2 Working Hours	3
	1.3 Extent of Works	4
	1.4 Scope of the Works	6
	1.5 Traffic Routes in the Region:	6
2.	Duties and Responsibilities	8
	2.1 Garda Siochana	8
	2.2 South Dublin County Council Road Area Engineers	8
	2.3 Emergency Services	8
3.	Procedures	9
	3.1 General	9
	3.2 Road Classification	10
	3.3 Traffic Control Tools	10
	3.4 Road Closures	10
	3.5 Lane closures	10
	3.6 Traffic Diversions	11
	3.7 Parking Restrictions and Alterations	11
4.	Specific Traffic Management and Control Procedures	11
	4.1 Access for businesses or commercial activities affected by works	11
	4.2 Access for Residents	11
	4.3 Pedestrian Safety	11
	4.4 Signage	11
	4.5 Cleanliness of Roads	12
	4.6 Operator Training	12
	4.7 Sequence of Traffic Management	12
	4.8 Road Crossings	15
	4.9 Existing Services	15
5.	Appendix	19
	Appendix A: Appointment and Controls Flowchart	19
	Appendix B: Generic Layouts and Documentations	20



#### 1. Introduction

This document forms the Traffic Management Plan (TMP) for the works associated with the installation of a new public footpath along the Cloverhill Road. The purpose of the works is to give access to the estate of 40no. residential units and adjacent soccer pitch. The site is located on Cloverhill Road, Dublin 22. It is approximately 0.5km south of Coldcut Rd- R833. This document sets out procedures for traffic management during the works.

These procedures include the provision of facilities for the safe passage of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and measures to separate them from the construction work. This document also sets out organisational structures, procedures, and the responsibilities to which the parties involved must adhere.

Traffic management controls are to be in accordance with the Department of Transport Chapter 8 - Temporary Traffic Measures and Signs for Road works' (August 2019).

#### **1.1 Traffic Management Principles**

McDermott and Trearty Construction (MDT) has adopted the following principles for planning, developing, and implementing traffic management proposals:

- To maximise the safety of the workforce and the traveling public.
- To keep traffic flowing as freely as possible and reduce the impact of the road works to a minimum.

MDT will plan and manage the construction works to ensure as far as is reasonably practicable that:

- Works within the road network do not result in a safety hazard to road users or the workforce involved in the contract.
- Any resulting increase in traffic delays and congestion is minimised.

#### **1.2 Working Hours**

Normal working hours on the site shall be Monday to Friday between 08:00 hours and 18:00. No work will be carried out on Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays. Note, it is envisaged that these works will take approximately 20 days to complete.



## 1.3 Extent of Works

The extent of the works is shown in red in Figure 1.



Figure 1 – Extent of Works





Figure 2- North Cloverhill Rd.



South Cloverhill Rd. Figure 3 – Pre-Start Photos (work area outlines in yellow)



#### 1.4 Scope of the Works

The PSCS shall confine their work operations to the minimum extent necessary for carrying out the works safely and responsibly. A detailed programme and scope of work will be compiled and implemented.

The works involve the clearance of the existing boundary wall, fencing and hedges, construction of a new boundary wall, and installation of new kerbing and footpath.

For the installation of the new kerb and footpath a stop/go lighting system is required between 8:00-18:00hrs while work is in progress.

The work will cover approx. 330m along the Cloverhill Rd. Works will be completed in 6 phases approx. 50m a phase.

The Stop/Go system is only required for steps 9,10 and 11 outlined below. This work will take approx. 3 days to complete per 50m. Work will then commence to the next 50m phase.

The following works will be carried out:

- 1. Set up of works location and harass fencing (1m in from verge of the road)
- 2. Scan to locate any underground services
- 3. Demolition of boundary wall
- 4. Clear vegetation to harris fencing
- 5. Existing foundations of will be used for area north of the site entrance where the existing wall is.
- 6. Excavate foundation for new boundary wall
- 7. Pour concrete for the base
- 8. Construct wall
- 9. Put in place the stop/go system TMP
- 10. Clear remaining vegetation to the verge
- 11. Install kerbing
- 12. Pour concrete for the footpath
- 13. Tidy up works area and remove traffic management

#### **1.5 Traffic Routes in the Region:**

- Primary Road Network
  There are no National Primary Roads directly affected by works
- Secondary Road Network
  There are no National Secondary Roads directly affected by works



- Regional Road Network
  There are no Regional Roads directly affected by the works
- Local Roads
  The works are to be carried out on a Level 1(iii) Local Road.

#### **1.6 Road Classifications**

- Level 1 Roads Urban and Low-Speed Roads;
- Level 2 Roads Rural Single Carriageway Roads; and
- Level 3 Roads Dual Carriageways and Motorways.

Le	evel	Carriageway Type	Speed / Speed Limit
Main	Sub		(km/h)
	i	Single	≤ 30
		Single	40
Level 1	iii	Single	50
	h.	Single	60
	IV	Multi-Lane / Dual	≤ 60
Lovel 2	i	Single	80
Level 2	ï	Single	100
Laugh 2	i	Dual and Motorway	80
Level 3	ii	Dual and Motorway	≥ 100

### Figure 4 – Road Classification

Cones should be sufficiently stable to remain upright in service and have a base design to stop the cone from rolling if knocked over. Table 8.3.5.1 shows the sizes of cones to be used for the different road levels.

Le	evel	Carriageway Type	Speed Limit / Speed	Minimum Height of Cone
Main	Sub		(km/h)	(mm)
	i	Single	≤ 30	750*
	ii	Single	40	750*
Level 1	iii	Single	50	750*
iv iv		Single	60	750*
	Multi-Lane / Dual	≤ 60	750	
1	i	Single	80	750*
Level 2	ii	Single	100	1000
i i		Dual and Motorway	80	750
Level 3	ii	Dual and Motorway	≥ 100	1000
Note:			•	

\*450mm high cones are permitted for works such as road surveying, inspection stops and Type C works on single carriageway roads only.

Table 8.3.5.1: Cone Size and Spacing



Figure 5 – Sign and Cone Dimensions

#### 2. Duties and Responsibilities

#### 2.1 Garda Siochana

Garda Siochana shall have final authority regarding day-to-day traffic control. MDT will comply with all directions, instructions, and requirements of the Garda Siochana.

#### 2.2 South Dublin County Council Road Area Engineers

County Council Road Engineers are primarily engaged in the design, maintenance, and management of the road network and its services in the works area. In respect of all works on, under, and above the road network, they are empowered as officers of the road authority to issue directions to undertakers of all works in relation to timing, the way works are carried out, reinstatement, and satisfactory completion. MDT will ensure to always work with the roads department.

#### **2.3 Emergency Services**

In relation to accidents occurring on or caused by the works, MDT will provide all necessary assistance to deal with the emergency to the Gardai, ambulance, and fire brigade services. MDT will consult with the emergency services providers regarding the traffic proposals for work in public areas/on public roads. In the event that emergency services need to travel past the works area where a road closure is not active, the existing traffic management system be it stop/go or traffic lights, may need to be cancelled and priority given to the emergency vehicle.

Emergency Services:	112
Garda (Ballyfermot):	(01) 666 7200
Hospital:	(01) 795 5000
ESB:	1850 372 999
Eircom:	1850 232324



South Dublin County Council:	(01) 414 9000
Poison Line:	(01) 837 9964
MDT Emergency Contact:	086 862 5094

#### 3. Procedures

#### 3.1 General

This Traffic Management Plan sets out proposals for traffic management and highlights the timing of any traffic control tools it may wish to apply.

- 1. Operatives to have clean, reflective PPE including helmet, vest/jacket, work boots
- 2. Hazards associated with the works shall be outlined in the method statement and risk assessment for the particular works. Before any works commence the risks associated with the activity need to be communicated to all site personnel associated with the works.
- 3. Emergency procedures need to be communicated at induction to ensure that all personnel associated with the works are clear on the procedures in place in the event of an accident.
- 4. All warning signs, traffic lights, cones, barriers and stop/go systems are in place before the commencement of work in accordance with design parameters.
- 5. Stop/go boards to be available on site.
- 6. Only approved signs are to be used.
- 7. All signs are to be clean and visible.
- 8. Once signs are in place the route will be assessed to ensure adequate visibility for drivers and pedestrians and in line with Chapter 8 provisions.
- 9. All signs will be secure and weighted down where appropriate with sandbags.
- 10. When the excavation is backfilled, no materials are to be left on the roadside.
- 11. A minimum of 3m will be available for traffic to commute on. This is the Minimum carriageway width for two way/shuttle traffic control as outline in the chart below.



	Normal traffic including buses and HGVs	Cars and light vehicles only
Two-way working	6.75 m desirable minimum 6.0 m absolute minimum	5.5 m desirable minimum 5.0 m absolute minimum
Shuttle working	3.7 m maximum 3.25 m desirable minimum 3.0 m absolute minimum	3.7 m maximum 2.75 m desirable minimum 2.5 m absolute minimum



- 12. Contractor vehicles will be parked with consideration given to the traffic management plan.
- 13. Excavation permits to be issued to crew to allow works proceed along the public road at the start of the work shift.

### **3.2 Road Classification**

The works are to be carried out on local road (L1007) which connects the Coldcut Rd (R833) to Palmerstown Way. Traffic on this local road can be busy at times during peak hours, so all site traffic must be extra conscious of this. Deliveries of plant and materials are to be planned and sequenced in an orderly fashion. Works and traffic management must be conducted in a manner to ensure that no back log of traffic occurs on the local road which might impact on the regional road.

#### **3.3 Traffic Control Tools**

MDT proposes to use a range of traffic control tools, including stop/go light system, marshalling, safety barriers, cones, and signage. Communication/instruction of the traffic management plan will come from the project manager and communicated to site personnel with the relevant training.

#### **3.4 Road Closures**

No road closures are planned for these works.

#### 3.5 Lane closures

A 50m section of the lane is required to be closed for approx. 3 days during working hours to facilitate installation of the curb and footpath. It will be made safe and reopened at the end of each work shift.



#### **3.6 Traffic Diversions**

No traffic diversions are planned for these works.

#### **3.7 Parking Restrictions and Alterations**

It is not envisaged that any existing car parking facilities will be affected by the proposed works.

#### 4. Specific Traffic Management and Control Procedures

#### 4.1 Access for businesses or commercial activities affected by works

Due to the duration of these works and traffic management systems to be used, it is not envisaged that access will be restricted for businesses.

#### 4.2 Access for Residents

Due to the location of these works, it is envisaged that access to private residences will be affected during phases 5 and 6 as outlined below in Figure 8 traffic management design. Note, phase 6 of the traffic management design will be the starting point continuing through and finishing with phase 1. Safety of residents and the public will be priority when disruptions occur in this area. Personnel with responsibility of operating signs will be competent and be aware and follow all safety precautions in place.

#### 4.3 Pedestrian Safety

MDT will ensure that throughout the course of the works its operations do not put pedestrians at risk.

Due to the location of these works it is envisaged that pedestrians will not be affected.

Site personnel and visitors must enter the site at the designated access point. All visitors to site must report to the site supervisor. All site personnel must wear high visibility clothing at all times.

#### 4.4 Signage

Signage will be inspected at regular intervals by MDT to check that it is in place, secure, unobstructed, and appropriately fitted with warning lights as required. Where signs could be



obscured by bends, hills or dips in the road, additional warning signs will be put in place. When traffic management controls involving traffic lights are implemented, a contact person will be available in the event of traffic light failure outside of normal working hours. Signage will be in compliance with Chapter 8 Temporary Traffic Measures and Signs For Roadworks.

#### 4.5 Cleanliness of Roads

MDT will provide sufficient resources on site, including road sweeping equipment to ensure the cleanliness of the adjacent road network.

#### 4.6 Operator Training

MDT will provide training to operatives on the traffic control systems being used on site. The importance of traffic management and the safety of motorists, pedestrians, and the site staff will be emphasised to all construction staff. All personnel will be informed of the traffic management plan during their briefing for the works. Toolbox talks will also be given so that all personnel is aware of traffic management controls implemented as the work progresses.

All personnel are to be in possession of a valid Safe Pass Card. Site Personnel shall be made aware of hazards when working on public roadways this shall be communicated to personnel at Site Induction and toolbox talks or as required/necessary. Safety belts to be used when driving dumpers. All machinery operatives to have appropriate CSCS Cards.

### 4.7 Sequence of Traffic Management

During the works, it will be necessary to implement temporary single-lane closures to facilitate the placing of curbing next to the public road. The extent of road closure and associated traffic management is outlined below. The works will be carried out in six phases to allow the road to remain open throughout the works. The temporary single-lane closure will happen for approx. 3 days at a time during working hours. A stop/go lighting system will be in put place. Taper to be installed as per guidelines and longitudinal and lateral safety zones to be observed.







Figure 7 – Safety Zone



#### Minimum Design Parameters for Level 1(iii) Roads (Single Carriageway of 50km/h)

Design Parameter	Type A > 12 hours	Type B < 12 hours	Type C < 15 mins
Advance Warning Signage			
Sign Size (mm)	600	600	-
Sign Visibility (m)	50	50	50
Number of Signs	2	2	-
Cumulative Distance (m)	40	40	-
Distance between Advance Warning Signs (m)	20	20	-
Taper			
Lane Taper Rate <sup>A</sup>	1 in E	1 in E	-
Hard Shoulder Taper Rate A	1 11 5	1 In 5	-
Cones			
Cone Height (mm)	750	750	-
Taper Spacing (m) <sup>B</sup>	3	3	-
Longitudinal Spacing (m) B	3	3	-
Lamps (unlit areas only)			
Taper Spacing (m)	6	6	-
Longitudinal Spacing (m)	6	6	-
Safety Zones			
Longitudinal (m)	5	5	-
Lateral (m)	0.5	0.5	-
Lanes		•	
Lane Width (m) <sup>C</sup>	3 (2.5)	3 (2.5)	-
Two-way Roadway Width (m)	5	5	-

#### Notes:

A. 45<sup>°</sup> taper is required at shuttle traffic controlled layouts with cones at 1m centres.

B. Cone spacing is the maximum permitted. Where geometry or any other site-specific reason dictates the spacing shall be reduced accordingly.

C The optimum lane width for all classes of vehicles is 3.3m. This may be reduced to a minimum of 3m. Below this, HGVs and buses must be marshalled past the works. The absolute minimum lane width, if only cars and light vehicles are present, is 2.5m. Refer to Paragraphs 8.4.3.1 to 8.4.3.3.



#### 4.8 Road Crossings

The proposed works will not require road crossings.

#### 4.9 Existing Services

- All service providers must be contacted prior to any excavation taking place to ensure that existing services are maintained. Separation distances to be agreed with the service providers. A calibrated CAT scanner must be on site at all times, with trained personnel on each crew and used in addition to the service drawings provided. Work to be carried out in line with HSA Code of Practice for Avoiding Danger from Underground Services.
- All goal posts, bunting and signage to be erected where any plant may cross under overhead ESB lines as per ESB Code of Practice for Avoiding Danger from Overhead Electricity Lines
- All services are to be treated as live unless written confirmation is received from the service provider.





Figure 9 - ESB





Figure 10 - Gas Networks Ireland





Figure 11 - EIR

#### 5. Appendix

#### **Appendix A: Appointment and Controls Flowchart**



ITS		
H	н	
SN S	HEE	
ESIG	S SI	
D	DRK	
MEN	WC	
GEI	CIVII	
ANA	GN (	
CM	ESI	
AFFI	NT D	
R	ME	
RKS	AGE	
MOI	IAN/	-
G	IC N	
ANN	AFF	

L R S	AFFIC I	WORK: MANAGE The:	S TRA	IT DESIG	ANA	GEMEN IVIL WC	T DESIG	N SHE	ETS	-	ayout Pa	rameters			IS .	TE SPECIFI	C SHEET	TDC	۲ ۲	
						Notes .					- mode	Victoria			Ē			3		
Dear	I Closuro	ement Self	ection		Ī	NOIES				ξ 2	uvanue l	Advance Size				-dau				Г
Deto	- Closelle	NINIONA - 1947	oinoi l		Ť						lin Advis	Ince Sinn Visibility	e iti			hon				T
Two	Wav				Ì					2 01	ize of Sid	SUC A LIRIC SUL			Me	Inesday				
Shut	ie:	Give & Take	a							I	eight of (	Cones			Ē	Irsday				Γ
		Priority									aper Len	gth			Fric	lay				
		Stop/Go								UN	ideways	Safety Zone			Sat	urday				
		Traffic Light	ø								ongways	Safety Zone			Sur	yebr				
Mars	hall										ane Widt	h/ Carriagewa)	v Width							0
Conv	NON				Í						ongitudin	al Cone/ Lamp	Spacing	21						I
Sem	i-Static Ro	padworks		2							aper Cor	he/ Lamp Spac	Bui		S	nsultation				
Road	tworks Sp	eedlimit								2	laximum	Length of Shut	tte		Bus	es/School Bus	ses Milk L	omies		
Caut	ionary Spi	eed Plate									epeater.	Sign Distances			9	al Residents	Emergency	y Services		
AIR	top		1		Ī					╡					B	dai for Roadw	orks Speedli	mit/or F	ositive TM	٦
Sign	5	u	Quantity	Supplement Additional Info	No.	Sign Ref	sign	Quantity	Supplement/ Additional Info	No.	Ign	sign	Quantity	Supplement/ Additional Info	No. SIG	L L	uß	Quantity	Supplement/ Additional Info	ý.
¥W M	~	Roadworks		kn/h		MK MA	Uneven		SLOW	20	<b>√</b> ¥8	Hump or	_	E	88	-	Roadworks		ų.	
3				E					kn/h						ē		2			
RUS 014		No Overtaking				BUI SUS	Keep Let	æ		>0		Side Road		Oscort Cledie CONCEALED ENTRANGE	101		No Overtaking End			-
RUS 88 8 8 8	C	Roadworks Speedlimit		Specify Speed Both Sides		BCC S	Keep Rig	보		20	¥2	Side Road Right		Descrit Charles CONCEALED ENTRANCE	O		Cone			
WK BB2	\$	Road Narrows Left		E		W CES	Chevron L	ť		20	×2	Site Access		Decoil Chedle CONCEALED ENTRANGE	WE	Ľ	Workman Barrier			
WK 033	\$	Road Narrows Right		E		W DEZR	Chevror Right			20	×8	Site Access Right		Decore Clearlie CONCEALED ENTRANCE	3		Steady State Lamp			
WK 034	\$	Road Narrows Both		E		W183 W184 W185	Barrier Board			20	× t	Soft Verge			5	0	Flashing Waming Lamp			2
WK 080	•	Temporary Traffic Signal		E		RUS DED' DED	Stop and (	ß	SG-Me-Marmed Stop/G SG-MeMath/Controlled Selets as appropriate	and a	<b>*</b> 8	Pedestrians Cross Left			'n	**	Rotating			.e
WK 061	÷	Flagman		E		<b>●</b> ●● ≓	Tempora Traffic Signal	2		>0	NK BI	Pedestrians Cross Right			UN D	S VIELO	Priority Signage			
WK 082	•	Queues Likely		E	<u>م</u>	WK T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	Stop Here Red	5			e e	Pedestrain Barrier								
WK 89	DISCIPCION DATA	Road				WK 030	Single La	æ			<u>.</u>	Herace Style Fencing	d'							

Design Prepared By

# **Appendix B: Generic Layouts and Documentations**

PLANN	ED WORKS TRAFF	IC MANAGEM	ENTD	ESI	<b>GN S</b>	HEET	(0)		SITE S	PECIFIC	SHEET		OF	
HEALTH,	SAFETY AND RISK ASSE	SSMENT MASTER	SHEET											
Works Na	me:		101100001198									TDRAM		
Job Location		Works	Period 1	Period 2	Period	8 Period 4	Period 5	Period 6	Period 7	Period 8	Period 9	Period 10 P	eriod 11 P	eriod 12
PSDP	(CMO)													
PSCS	(CMO)													
Job Code														
Budget Hold	er								8					
Budget										8		20 S		
Total No. Wo	ork Days													
Tot. No. Pers	son Days													
Work Days > Notify HSA	· 30 or Person Days > 500 then													
Physical I	Data	Traffic Data			Tra	ffic Mar	agement	t Items	Partic	ular Ris	sk Item	s		8
Brief Descrip	tion of Works:	AADT			Acci	dent Histo	C)		Burial			Undergrou	ind works	
		% HCV			Ped	estrians			Fall fror	n height		Diving		
		Speed Limit			Sch	ools			Chemic	al/Biologi	cal	Compress	ed air	
Road Classif	Tcation	Operating Speed			Sho	SO			Radiatic	u		Explosives		
Road ID (incl	I. Seg)				Cycl	ists			HV Pow	ver Lines		Heavy con	nponents	
Road Width					Equ	estrian/Ra	il Crossing		Drownir	D		Other		
Works Lengt	4				Vuln	erable Ro	ad Users							
Roadside De	svelopment:				Bus	Route/Scl	nool Route							10
a state of the sta	Annual Con Man Defense			ì	+									Residual
Identified	Items (For Map Keterence	e see overlear)		Kish										Risk
Map Ref.	Item	Hazard		Hi Med	Lw				Control				-	li Med Lw
												20 20		
Des	ign Prepared By:					ſ								

PROJECT NAME:			Phase:	
Date:	Time:	1).	2).	
	ENT SET-UP/ MO		PECTIONS	
1-1) Installation Cl	hecks		Lenoito	
Does the Traffic Manageme	nt conform to the De	esion Layout and Pa	rameters?	
Have all hazards been addr	essed in the Traffic I	Management Plan?		
Has allowance been made f	or the delivery and r	emoval of materials	?	
Have Gardaí been informed	of any Traffic Lights	/ Stop-Go Boards in	n use?	
Have Gardaí been informed	of Roadworks Speed	Limits being intro	luced?	
	INT OPERATION	INSPECTIONS		
2) INAPPIC MANAGEM				
2-1) Operation Ch	100			1
Are Safety Zones being kep	t clear of operatives,	plant and materials	7	
Are all the signs in good co	ndition/ are all cone	s in good condition	with sleeves?	
Are sign vision lines free fro	om bends, hills/dips	in the road, parked	vehicles, hedges etc?	
Will the site be safe at night	t or in wind, fog, sno	w or rain? (delete a	s appropriate)	
Are all misleading permane	nt signs and road m	arkings covered?		
s the carriageway/footway	being kept clear of r	nud and surplus eq	uipment?	
Are materials/ plant that ar	e left on verges or la	y-bys being proper	ly guarded and lit?	
2-2) Traffic Checks	i			
s there safe access to adja	ent premises?			
Does Signing and Guarding	meet the (changing)	conditions?		
Are traffic control arrangem	ents working at the	optimum level to re	duce traffic delays?	
f present, are the needs of	cyclists or horse rid	ers incorporated int	o the layout?	
2-3) Pedestrian an	d Vulnerable Road U	ser Checks		
Have the needs of pedestria	uns and vulnerable ro	oad users been addi	essed in the layout?	
f pedestrian route blocked	has a suitable altern	native route been pr	ovided?	
Are pedestrian routes clear	v evident/ indicated	?		
f a footway in the road is to	be used, are ramps	to the kerb provide	ed?	
Are pedestrian hazards suff	iciently GUARDED at	night?		
3) TRAFFIC MANAGEM	ENT CESSATION	NPECTIONS		
2 1) Wests Come	the Charks			
a-1) works comple	are and house been	na na ca ca dD		
have all signs, cones, parm	ers, and lamps been	removea:		
have any covered permanent	the foresting of the store	ser Ser Sinnels / Store	C	
AVE GARGAI DEEN INFORMED	that speedimits/ 11	ame signais/ stop-	uo removed:	
4) EXCEPTIONS REPOR				
(Append attachments a	s necessary)			



# **Appendix C: Traffic Management Drawings**

Please see attached PDF drawings.

#### Compliance

We (the undersigned) have read and understood the attached Traffic Management Plan and will comply with the specified requirements and control measures. If the work activity changes or deviates from that originally envisaged, we will seek further advice and request an amendment to the Traffic Management Plan

Name: Date: